
 

AGENDA 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ANNUAL MEETING 

TUESDAY, JULY 16, 2024 – 10:00 AM 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY ON ZOOM AND IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REGISTERING FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO THIS MEETING  

AND FOR SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LOCATED ON THE PAGE 

FOLLOWING THE AGENDA 

AGENDA 

I. Roll Call

II. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of June 11, 2024

III. Executive Director’s Report

IV. Administrative Matters

A. Resolution Approving Board Committee Charters

V. Property Dispositions

A. Development – Assemblage (unsolicited)
The property below is proposed for disposition to Kifleye LLC, the owner of 5301,
5303 and 5305 Market Street in the Third (3rd) Council District, to develop a mixed-
use apartment building containing four (4) ground-floor retail spaces and twelve (12)
market-rate apartments on the two upper floors. The application was unsolicited and
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply for this project.
• 5307* Market Street (CD 3) (*property being transferred by the City of Philadelphia

to the Land Bank)

B. Development – Affordable Housing (unsolicited)
1. The properties below are proposed for disposition to BLA Holdings LLC to develop

nine (9) single-family homeownership units in the Third (3rd) Council District. The
units will each be two stories, with an unfinished basement, containing three (3)
bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,100 square feet each. They
will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% of AMI for a maximum
sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood
Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration
of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant
to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 1 of 192



 

 

• 3833* and 3915* Brown Street; 735* N. DeKalb Street; 3605* Melon Street; 
3517 Mount Vernon Street; 524 N. 35th Street; 740* and 765* N. 38th Street; 
and 839* N. 39th Street (CD 3) (*denotes properties being transferred by the 
City of Philadelphia and Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land 
Bank) 
 

2. The properties below are proposed for disposition to Gil Property Group LLC to 
develop ten (10) single-family homeownership units in the Third (3rd) Council 
District. The units will each be two stories, with a finished basement, containing 
three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,455 square feet 
each. They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% of AMI for a 
maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the 
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to 
a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and 
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 3914*, 3917, 3927*, 3935*, 3936-38*, 3937*, 3940, 3946* and 3948* Folsom 
Street (CD 3) (*denotes properties being transferred by the City of Philadelphia 
and Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

3. The properties below are proposed for disposition to Northwest Development 
Group LLC to develop ten (10) single-family homeownership units in the Third 
(3rd) Council District. The units will each be two stories, with an unfinished 
basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 
1,200 square feet each. They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 
100% of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible 
for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be 
subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited 
and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this 
project. 

• 3539* Aspen Street; 3624 Brown Street; 610, 612, and 614* N. Shedwick 
Street; 3405*, 3830* and 3832* Wallace Street; 682* N. 33rd Street; 620* N. 
35th Street (CD 3) (*denotes properties being transferred by the City of 
Philadelphia and Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

4. The properties below are proposed for disposition to Project IV LLC to develop ten 
(10) single-family homeownership units in the Third (3rd) Council District. The 
units will each be two stories, with an unfinished basement, containing three (3) 
bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,375 square feet each. They 
will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% of AMI for a maximum 
sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood 
Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration 
of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant 
to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 2 of 192



 

 

• 3841* and 3843 Melon Street; 3858* Mount Vernon Street; 642*, 647* and 
658* Union Street; 3903*, 3905, 3907* and 3930* Wallace Street (CD 3) 
(*denotes properties being transferred by the City of Philadelphia and 
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

5. The properties below are proposed for disposition to Rosario Estates LLC to 
develop ten (10) single-family homeownership units in the Third (3rd) Council 
District. The units will each be two stories, with an unfinished basement, 
containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,100 
square feet each. They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% 
of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the 
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to 
a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and 
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 3607*, 3830 and 3832* Melon Street; 3837, 3917, 3938*, 3940* and 3944* 
Mount Vernon Street; 612* Union Street (CD 3) (*denotes properties being 
transferred by the City of Philadelphia and Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

6. The properties below are proposed for disposition to JES Capital Investments LLC 

to develop five (5) single-family homeownership units in the Fifth (5th) Council 
District. The units will each be two stories, without a basement, containing three 
(3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,160 square feet each. 
They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% of AMI for a 
maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the 
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to 
a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and 
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 2605*, 2607*, 2608*, 2610* and 2622 N. 29th Street (CD 5) (*denotes 
properties being transferred by the City of Philadelphia and Philadelphia 
Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

7. The properties below are proposed for disposition to Seamless Development LLC 
to develop seven (7) single-family homeownership units in the Seventh (7th) 
Council District. The units will each be two stories, without a basement, containing 
three (3) bedrooms and one and a half (1.5) bathrooms at approximately 1,100 
square feet each. They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% 
of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the 
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to 
a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and 
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 1766*, 1768*, 1770* and 1772* N. Bodine Street; 218 Cecil B. Moore Avenue; 
2244* and 2246* Hope Street (CD 7) (*denotes properties being transferred by 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 3 of 192



 

 

the City of Philadelphia and Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land 
Bank) 

 
C. Side/Rear Yards 

The property below is proposed for conveyance to the following applicants as a side or 
rear yard.  The applicants own and reside in the adjacent home.  The property will be 
subject to a 30-year mortgage and permanently restricted for use as a side/rear yard. 
• 1900* E. Lehigh Avenue – Quay and Mui A. Phong (CD 1) (*property being 

transferred by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

VI. Public Comment (Old & New Business) 
 
VII. Adjournment      
 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 4 of 192



 

 

 
 
FROM:  Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., Senior Counsel 

RE:  Philadelphia Land Bank July 16, 2024, Board Meeting  
Remote Board Meeting Notice, Public Attendance, and Comment Procedures 

DATE:   July 3, 2024 
 
 

The July 2024 Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land Bank”) is 
currently scheduled for Tuesday, July 16, 2024, with the executive session to begin at 9:30 A.M. and 
the meeting to begin at 10:00 A.M or as soon as the Executive Session has ended.  This meeting will be 
held remotely using Zoom webinar.  The meeting is open to public attendees and for public comments and 
questions. 

PLEASE NOTE: To participate in the meeting on your computer, you must register in advance. This 
requirement is necessary to allow us to collect the names of participants as required by law.  Using a 
computer, tablet or smartphone, use the following link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_uShnioX9SLuhXBEJVc4utQ 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar.  
Members of the public who join before 10 A.M. will be given access when the meeting begins.   
Webinar ID: 863 4196 8429; Passcode: 433530 

To join the meeting by calling in, dial one of the following numbers:  
+1 267 831 0333 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 929 205 6099 Passcode: 433530 

The Board agenda and package will be available to view no later than five (5) days prior to the Board 
meeting at https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/.  Public comment and 
questions regarding the matters that are posted on the agenda may be submitted by email prior to the Board 
meeting and/or in person if attending the Board meeting.   

Public Comment BEFORE Board Meeting: 
Email the following information to andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, July 15, 2024: 

• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable; 
• Contact information (your email address); 
• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and  
• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner. 

Questions/comments submitted via email by the 3:00 pm deadline will be summarized at the Board meeting, 
answered or addressed to the extent the Board chooses, and attached to the minutes of the meeting.   

(continued on next page) 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 5 of 192

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_uShnioX9SLuhXBEJVc4utQ
https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/
mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


 

 

 

Public Comment DURING Board Meeting: 
To submit questions or comments during the Board meeting when public comment on an agenda item is 
requested by the Board Chair, use the “Raise Hand” function at the bottom of the screen.  Questions may 
also be submitted using the “Q&A” function. Q&A submissions will be attached to the minutes of the 
meeting. 

Individuals will be allowed two (2) minutes for public comment per person per agenda item.  
• The Chair reserves the right to limit comments when more than a certain number of people have the 

same comments on the same matter. 
• Staff will assist with timing and muting microphones as needed. 

 
Rules of Conduct: 

• Comments must be related to the specific agenda item in question.  
• There will be no personal attacks or hate speech against anyone, including applicants, staff members, 

Board members or other members of the public.  
 
Recording of Board Meeting: 
If possible, the Board meeting will be recorded and made publicly available within thirty (30) days.  If you 
have a question about an agenda item after the meeting concludes, please submit it to 
andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov with the following information: 

• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable; 
• Contact information (your email address); 
• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and  
• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner. 

Land Bank staff will provide a response to the extent possible. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 6 of 192

mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 1 of 68 
 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 
 

June 11, 2024, BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT) 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Tuesday, 
June 11, 2024, via Zoom webinar, of which proper notices were given.  A condensed certified 
transcript of this meeting is attached to these minutes as Exhibit A. 
 

Call to Order 
 
Board Chair Herbert Wetzel called the meeting to order at 10:07 a.m. 
 
Andrea Imredy Saah, Senior Counsel, made the following announcements: 
 
Today’s Board meeting is being held via an authorized communication device and is being recorded. 
Questions and comments may be made using the Q&A function or by using the “raise hand” 
function. If you are calling in and not using the Zoom webinar link, you may ask questions or make 
comments by pressing *9 on your phone or using the “raise hand” function.  Please do not use the 
Chat function. If any member of the public has any issues submitting questions or comments, please 
send an email to Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov.  Please note that all questions and comments received 
by email prior to this meeting or through the Q&A function during the meeting will be included in 
the minutes.  All questions and comments received before this meeting were shared with the Board. 
 
Prior to today’s Public Session, the Board held an Executive Session during which Mr. Rodriguez 
reviewed the agenda, discussed a Board orientation and the elections to occur at this meeting. 
 

Item I 
Roll Call 

 
The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Cornelius Brown, Nicholas 
Dema, Andrew Goodman, Maria Gonzalez, Jenny Greenberg, Kelvin Jeremiah, Michael Johns 
Rebecca Lopez Kriss, Majeedah Rashid and Herbert Wetzel. 
 
Darwin Beauvais was absent at roll call but joined the meeting at 10:44 am. 
 
The following Land Management staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Andrea Imredy 
Saah, Esq., Robert Spence, Esq., Todd Hestand, Brian Romano, Tracy Pinson-Reviere, Cristina 
Martinez and Mathen Pullukattu. 
 
Public Attendees: The list of public attendees follows these minutes. 
 
A quorum of Directors was present, and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with 
business. 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 7 of 192

mailto:Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov


PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 2 of 68 
 

Item II 
Approval of Board Minutes 

 
Mr. Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board regarding the minutes of the Board 
meeting of May 14, 2024. There were none. 
 
Mr. Wetzel called for a motion regarding approval of the minutes. 
 
Ms. Lopez-Kriss moved to approve the minutes. Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Johns was not present at the May 14 meeting and abstained from the vote. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the May 14, 2024 Board 
Meeting minutes. 
 

Item III 
Executive Director’s Report 

 
Mr. Rodriguez discussed a block clean up hosted by PHDC and the Civetta Group at the Jefferson 
and Marston site on June 8, 2024.  This development was approved by the Board for a Turn the Key 
(TTK) development of eighty-five (85) properties.  The event was well attended and impactful, and 
photos of the event will be shared with the Board.  Many block captains and residents joined the 
cleanup, and it was a good opportunity for staff to meet nearby residents. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez next shared a preview of the new reporting system for Land Bank property and 
developments.  Staff will be updating the format after receiving initial feedback, and the finalized 
version will be hosted on both the PHDC and Planning websites. Mr. Rodriguez shared the preview 
with the meeting, and a copy of the preview is attached to these minutes as Exhibit B. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez noted for the Board that Philadelphia Code Chapter 16-700 governing the Land Bank 
was amended to provide for additional notice to owners of property for which the Land Bank may 
submit a Priority Bid at a Sheriff’s sale.  This was passed by Council to add a specific notification in 
response to the Supreme Court decision in Tyler v. Hennepin County. 
 
Mr. Goodman asked if Land Bank has the mechanism it needs to assert its priority bid.  Mr. 
Rodriguez responded that the Land Bank is working with the City to delay sales while the mechanics 
of the priority bid are finalized in light of this legislation and the new online sales system. 
 

Item IV 
Administrative Matters 

 
IV.A.  Election of Board Officers and 11th Board Member 
 
Mr. Rodriguez is requesting Board approval for the election of the Board of Officers and 11th Board 
member.  Such officers and member would hold office for one year or until their successors are 
elected and qualified. Board members have been nominated to the following positions: 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 8 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 3 of 68 
 

 
Herbert Wetzel as Board Chairman 
Nicholas Dema as Vice Chairman 
Andrew Goodman as Secretary  
Rebecca Lopez-Kriss as Treasurer 
Kelvin Jeremiah as 11th Board member  

 
Mr. Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.  There were none. 
 
Mr. Wezel asked if any comments or questions were received prior to the Board meeting concerning 
the Election of Board Officers and the 11th Board member.  No comments were received. 
 
Mr. Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Public.  Mr. Wetzel recognized Jihad Ali, who 
asked if this matter or the chart Mr. Rodriguez shared during the Executive Director’s Report were in 
the agenda that was published prior to this meeting.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that the chart was 
presented today and will be made live for the public on the website.  Ms. Imredy Saah responded that 
the published Board Package included the names of the nominated Board members and 11th member 
on page 53.  Mr. Ali asked if Kelvin Jeremiah’s name was included, and Ms. Imredy Saah responded 
in the affirmative. 
 
Mr. Wetzel called for a motion to approve the election of Board Officers and the 11th Board member.  
Ms. Gonzalez moved to adopt the Resolution.  Mr. Johns seconded the motion. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution Electing 
Officers and 11th Member of the Philadelphia Land Bank (attached to these minutes as Exhibit 
C). 
 
Mr. Rodriguez then welcomed Kelvin Jeremiah to the Board as the 11th Board member. 
 
Ms. Imredy Saah read the Board’s policy regarding public comment. 
 

Item V 
Property Dispositions 

 
V.A. Development – Affordable Housing (unsolicited) 
 
Mr. Rodriguez requested the Board’s approval to convey 423-27 and 429-39 (including 429-39 Rear) 
E. Ashmead Street; 226, 260, 278, 292, and 313 (aka 313-15) E. Bringhurst Street; 49 E. Earlham 
Street; 4635 Germantown Avenue; 30 Good Street; 5608, 5618, 5619, 5642, and 5669 Heiskell 
Street; 4946 Keyser Street; 316, 318-34, and 346 Mechanic Street; 5514, 5515, and 5642 Morton 
Street; 6672 and 6674 Musgrave Street; 53 E. Pastorius Street; 207 E. Penn Street; 248 E. Phil Ellena 
Street; 35 E. Seymour Street; 227, 261, and 263 E. Sharpnack Street; 111 and 112 E. Springer Street; 
4951, 4957, 4961, and 4975 Sheldon Street; 218, 326, 342, and 343-45 Shedaker Street; 4925 and 
5222 Wakefield Street; 42 and 44 Reger Street in the 8th Councilmanic District to Civetta Property 
Group LLC.  Civetta Property Group LLC proposes to develop 70 single-family homeownership 
units. The units will be two stories, with finished basements, containing three bedrooms and two 
bathrooms at approximately 1,050 square feet each. They will be sold to households with incomes at 
or below 80% of AMI with a maximum sales price of $250,000. The homes will be eligible for the 
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration of 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 9 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 4 of 68 
 

Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition 
policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project.  The EOP goals are 20% MBE and 20% WBE. 
 
Chair Wetzel asked for questions from the Board.  Mr. Dema asked if all the properties will be sold 
for $250,000.  Mr. Rodriguez $250,000 is the maximum price for all units, but the developer may sell 
the homes for less than that amount. 
 
Mr. Jeremiah asked if there was an evaluation of the developer’s financial and operational capacities.  
Mr. Rodriguez responded that Land Bank staff review the developer’s submitted financial 
information and operational track record, and Land Bank staff utilize knowledge of existing 
approvals for Land Bank developments when evaluating such capacities.  Mr. Jeremiah next asked if 
there were any other unsolicited proposals for any of the subject properties.  Mr. Rodriguez 
responded that the Land Bank has not received any other qualified applications for the properties. 
 
Mr. Johns asked how many parcels have been disposed of to this developer to date.  Mr. Rodriguez 
did not have that information immediately available.  Mr. Johns asked what rubric is used to evaluate 
unsolicited applications.  Mr. Rodriguez said the Land Bank uses the legislated rubric.  Mr. Johns is 
concerned about the number of properties sold to the developer and that the designs are not changed 
for each project, and expressed his belief that the homes built by the developer do not make the 
neighborhood better. 
 
Ms. Gonzalez asked about the mechanics of the $250,000 sales price cap.  Mr. Rodriguez responded 
that the qualified homebuyer receives the Turn the Key subsidy and Philly First Mortgage subsidies, 
and many purchasers will receive additional assistance from their lending institution.  All Turn the 
Key purchasers will pay significantly less than the $250,000 price, and most will pay $160,000 to 
$165,000 after all subsidies are factored in. 
 
Ms. Greenberg asked if the project proposal includes phasing or what the allowable time frame is.  
Mr. Rodriguez responded that similarly sized projects usually include phasing and the developer is 
unlikely to start construction on all units at the same time. 
 
Chair Wetzel recognized a representative of Civetta Property Group LLC, Brennan Tomasetti.  Ms. 
Tomasetti spoke about the design of Civetta Property Group’s proposals, and stated that they do 
everything they can to meet the fabric of each neighborhood.  Ms. Tomasetti also clarified that this 
project will be phased, and the typical completion time is six months from groundbreaking to 
completion. 
 
Chair Wetzel asked if written comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  There were 
several, and Ms. Imredy Saah summarized the letters.  All letters received are attached to the minutes 
as Exhibit D.  A brief summary follows:  
 
LaKisha Richardson sent an email stating her family has been maintaining 292 E. Bringhurst Street, 
which is next to her home, and that she hoped to acquire the property as a side lot. 
 
Letters were received from Jen Hombach, Abby Way, Amanda Gigante, Faye Hoek, Ferdinand 
Maloney, Karen Miller Rauch, Mason Carter, Miranda Czyzyk, and Sug Daniels regarding the 
proposed disposition of 316 to 334 Mechanic Street.  The letters raised concerns about the effect of 
construction of new homes on existing flooding problem downhill, water table issues which affect 
structures on the properties, the adverse effects of homes being sold at $250,000, a price that is 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 10 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 5 of 68 
 

higher than many home prices in the neighborhood, and the loss of a community garden that 
neighbors have started on the property and would like to continue using. 
 
Jen Hombach also submitted a petition opposing the development with 103 signatures. 
 
Anthony Fullard submitted a petition with 44 signatures supporting the project. 
 
Chair Wetzel called for comments from the public and recognized Anthony Fullard.  Mr. Fullard 
stated he is in support of new housing and specifically the Turn the Key program.  Mr. Fullard went 
on a tour of a Turn the Key home with the 8th District Councilwoman, and he reports she was 
impressed. 
 
Chair Wetzel recognized Joyce Smith.  Ms. Smith asked how many applications are pending in the 
pipeline and if there will be enough properties to cover all Turn the Key applicants.  Mr. Rodriguez 
stated the Land Bank reviews applications as they are received, and that there is no shortage of 
inventory.  Mr. Rodriguez added that there is still bond issuance money available, and that there may 
be a new bond issuance after the initial issuance is closed out. 
 
Board member Darwin Beauvais joined the meeting at 10:44 am. 
 
Chair Wetzel recognized Jihad Ali, who expressed his appreciation for Mr. Jeremiah as the 11th 
Board member.  Mr. Ali wants to know more about Civetta’s capacity to complete this and other 
projects.  He also questioned the WBE and MBE levels approved by the City for Civetta’s projects, 
ultimately requesting that the Board table this item. Mr. Ali’s full comments can be found on pages 
29 to 33 of the attached transcript. 
 
Chair Wetzel recognized LaKisha Richardson.  Ms. Richardson’s concerns were shared during 
written comment by Ms. Imredy Saah.  Ms. Richardson lives at 290 E. Bringhurst Street, which is 
adjacent to 292 E. Bringhurst Street.  Ms. Richardson has maintained 292 E. Bringhurst Street since 
the former home on the lot was demolished.  Ms. Richardson opposes the disposition of 292 E. 
Bringhurst Street as part of this project and is interested in purchasing the property. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Allison Weiss.  Ms. Weis has concerns about new construction on 
properties that are in a flood zone.  Ms. Weiss would prefer the properties remain as open 
greenspace.  Ms. Weiss also noted the Germantown Kitchen Garden wanted to acquire the property 
at 217 E. Penn St. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Richard Parrella, who lives on Mechanic Street.  Mr. Parrella stated the 
former houses on 316-334 and 346 Mechanic Street were condemned due to water damage from the 
high water table, and added that 316-334 Mechanic St has been maintained as a community garden 
since the former houses were demolished.  Mr. Parrella opposes the disposition. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Dee Dee Risher, who lives in the neighborhood.  Ms. Risher stated she 
already expressed many of her concerns in the Q&A feature.  Ms. Risher asked whether most homes 
will be sold to purchasers at the $45,000 annual income level Mr. Rodriguez discussed earlier, as she 
fears wealthier purchasers moving into the neighborhood, and the average income is $41,000.  Ms. 
Risher is in favor of getting more affordable housing but hopes that all parcels will be considered 
individually.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that this is a 100% Area Median Income development and 
confirmed that there is no preference for City employees.  He also confirmed that the Q&A is 
available to the Board and is made part of the published minutes.  Mr. Rodriguez added that the 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 11 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 6 of 68 
 

Board is not required to vote only on the resolution as presented but can amend the resolution or add 
specific conditions to its approval. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Jennifer Hombach.  She lives on Mechanic Street and has concerns about 
the safety of new homes to be built on Mechanic Street given the issues with former structures on the 
street.  Ms. Hombach discussed her interviews with neighbors regarding the history of the property 
and its more recent use as a community garden.  Ms. Hombach’s full comments can be found on 
pages 41 to 43 of the attached transcript. 
 
Mr. Jeremiah asked if the Land Bank did a review of the current use of the lots, and whether the land 
had been investigated with respect to the concerns raised about the failings of previous structures.  
Mr. Rodriguez responded that the lots were inspected prior to the posting of the disposition notice.  
No current use of the lots is approved by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, which currently 
owns the lots.  Mr. Rodriguez added that there is no readily available information regarding any prior 
structures on the Mechanic Street lots.   
 
Mr. Goodman said the site photos in the Board package seem to show people are using some of the 
land, although photos are not identified by address. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez responded that the Land Bank always cross-references the site inspections with 
applications to purchase the property, that no other qualified applications had been received, and no 
one has permission to use any of these lots. 
 
Ms. Greenberg stated that there has not been a formal application process to apply for an urban 
garden agreement for several years, and there are many people gardening on land that do not have 
permission. 
 
Ms. Lopez Kriss suggested that if a Board member would like to propose an amendment to the 
resolution that they make a motion to amend the resolution. 
 
Chair Wetzel asked if the Board wanted to entertain a motion to modify the proposed resolution to 
set aside the Mechanic Street lots and 292 E. Bringhurst Street for further evaluation.   
 
Mr. Jeremiah moved to amend the resolution to remove 316-334 and 346 Mechanic Street and 292 E. 
Bringhurst Street from the project for further review.  Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion.   
 
Ms. Lopez Kriss clarified that the amendment to the resolution would remove the properties from the 
project for further review, and that neighbors with a vested interest in acquiring the properties will 
need to make themselves known and find the legal means to gain site control over the properties.   
 
Mr. Jones asked if removing the properties would require the developer to submit a new proforma. 
Mr. Rodriguez stated the Board can ask for an updated proforma to be supplied.   
 
Since a motion was made by Mr. Jeremiah and properly seconded by Ms. Gonzalez, Chair Wetzel 
asked for a vote.  All Board members present except Mr. Johns voted to approve the amendment to 
the resolution to remove of 316-334 and 346 Mechanic Street and 292 E. Bringhurst Street from the 
proposed disposition. Mr. Johns voted against the amendment to the resolution.  
 
Chair Wetzel then called for a motion to approve the amended resolution.   
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 12 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 7 of 68 
 

Ms. Lopez-Kriss moved to approve the amended resolution.  Mr. Beauvais seconded the motion.   
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board approved the Resolution Authorizing 
Conveyance of 423-27, 429-39 (incl. 429-39 Rear) E. Ashmead Street; 226, 260, 278, 313 (aka 
313-15) E. Bringhurst Street;  49 E. Earlham Street; 4635 Germantown Avenue; 30 Good 
Street;  5608, 5618, 5619, 5642, 5669 Heiskell Street; 4946 Keyser Street;  5514, 5515, 5642 
Morton Street; 6672, 6674 Musgrave Street;  53 E. Pastorius Street; 207 E. Penn Street; 248 E. 
Phil Ellena Street;  42, 44 Reger Street; 35 E. Seymour Street;  227, 261, 263 E. Sharpnack 
Street; 218, 326, 342, 343 Shedaker Street;  4951, 4957, 4961, 4975 Sheldon Street; 111, 112 E. 
Springer Street; 4925, 5222 Wakefield Street to Civetta Property Group LLC (attached to these 
minutes as Exhibit E) by a vote of nine to two.  Mr. Brown, Mr. Dema, Mr. Goodman, Ms. 
Greenberg, Mr. Jeremiah, Ms. Lopez Kriss, Ms. Rashid and Chair Wetzel voted in favor of the 
resolution. Ms. Gonzalez and Mr. Johns voted against the resolution. 
 
Ms. Gonzalez recommended that the Board evaluate how unsolicited applications are reviewed. 
 
Chair Wetzel stated he is working on charters for Board committees, and the newly reconstituted 
Board will need to make decisions regarding matters such as increasing the number of Requests For 
Proposals versus reacting to unsolicited applications. 
 
Mr. Johns asked for a report on all unsolicited applications that have been approved, including the 
identity of the developers, how many properties they have been awarded, and how many homes have 
actually been built as a result of those applications. 
 
Mr. Jeremiah asked if the Board wanted to consider putting a hold on unsolicited applications to 
allow the Board an opportunity to review the policies and procedures regarding dispositions. 
 
Chair Wetzel asked Mr. Rodriguez if any unsolicited applications are expected to be reviewed at the 
July Board meeting.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that a number of applications are expected to be on 
the agenda, many of which are minority developers, and the applications average around 10 
properties each. 
 
Ms. Gonzalez reiterated that she has expressed concerns about the processes in the past and they 
continue to make her uncomfortable. 
 
Mr. Dema requested that the Board receive additional information regarding proposed developments. 
 
Chair Wetzel requested the Board receive such information two weeks prior to each Board meeting. 
 
Mr. Beauvais generally agreed with the requests for additional information, but that the Board must 
consider the realities of development.  Delays in approvals to assuage Board members’ concerns can 
have significant negative effects on the viability of the proposed projects. 
 
Mr. Jeremiah thinks a middle ground exists where he can become comfortable approving dispositions 
without unduly delaying such approvals if allowed time to ask questions of the staff prior to the 
Board meetings. 
 
Ms. Lopez Kriss wants to ensure that any such questions remain part of the public process, and the 
Board needs to keep that in mind as it develops new practices and procedures. 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 13 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 8 of 68 
 

Chair Wetzel stated he is working to develop a process where the Board members are comfortable 
with the information they receive regarding the projects without unnecessarily slowing down 
projects. 
 
Mr. Beauvais offered the City Council meeting process as a possible model for the Land Bank Board.  
Council holds a preliminary limited caucus session to learn about matters before Council, and then 
holds the full meeting with all public participation later that day. 
 
Mr. Jeremiah stated his support for developing Chair Wetzel’s proposed Board committees and his 
willingness to rely on their recommendations. 
 
Ms. Imredy Saah clarified that the Land Bank Board is subject to the Pennsylvania Sunshine Act, and 
that any Board meeting with five or more members must be open to the public, and that any 
committee meeting that results in a committee making a recommendation must also be open to the 
public. 
 
Mr. Beauvais stated that committees would be able to ask questions, the answers to which could be 
reported to the full Board, without making a recommendation and remain in compliance with the 
Sunshine Act. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez asked for clarification on what the Board is requesting.  Chair Wetzel responded that 
the Board requires information regarding the current use of the property, whether authorized or 
otherwise, and that the Board is generally looking for information prior to the meeting to avoid 
learning things at the Board meeting which might lead them to pause approval of a disposition.  Mr. 
Dema asked that the pictures in the Board package include the address and current use for each 
photo.   
 
The full discussion of these issues can be found on pages 53 to 67 of the attached transcript. 
 
Ms. Greenberg asked about the availability of license agreements for gardens.  Mr. Rodriguez 
responded that the Land Bank’s insurer requires that anyone using land titled to the Land have a 
commercial general liability insurance policy and indemnify the City and the land-holding agency.  
Such insurance is cost-prohibitive and beyond most gardeners’ capacity.  Furthermore, the trend in 
vacant property insurance policies is to prohibit all uses by anyone other than the owner, regardless 
of the user’s capacity to insure the property or indemnify the owner.   
 
Mr. Rodriguez added that the Land Bank prefers to transfer title and continues to review applications 
for gardens and side yards.  If the inspection shows that a property is being actively used as a side 
yard or a garden, the Land Bank will approach the District Councilperson to ask if they wish to 
support that unapproved use and make it legal, to the extent possible, or if they would prefer to see 
affordable housing built on the land.  Council approval by resolution is required for all proposed 
dispositions. 
 

V.B. Side/Rear Yards  
 
Mr. Rodriguez requested that the Board authorize the conveyance of 166 W. Cumberland Street in the 
7th Council District to Pura Garcia to be used as a side or rear yard.   The applicant is compliant and 
in good standing with the City of Philadelphia.  The property will be subject to a 30-year mortgage 
and permanent use restrictions as a side or rear yard. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 14 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 9 of 68 
 

 
Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding this disposition. 
 
Mr. Jeremiah moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Brown seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Wetzel asked if any questions or comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. 
Imredy Saah responded none were received. 
 
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public.  There were none. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 
Authorizing Conveyance of 166 West Cumberland Street to Pura Garcia (attached to these 
minutes as Exhibit F). 
 
Next, Mr. Rodriguez requested that the Board authorize the conveyance of 2537 Mutter Street in the 
7th Council District to Janet Hernandez to be used as a side or rear yard.   The applicant is compliant 
and in good standing with the City of Philadelphia.  The property will be subject to a 30-year 
mortgage and permanent use restrictions as a side or rear yard. 
 
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.  There were none. 
 
Chair Wetzel asked if any questions or comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. 
Imredy Saah responded none were received. 
 
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public.  There were none. 
 
Seeing no questions from the Board or the public, Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding this 
disposition. 
 
Ms. Gonzalez moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Johns seconded the motion. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 
Authorizing Conveyance of 2537 Mutter Street to Janet Hernandez (attached to these minutes as 
Exhibit G). 
 
Next, Mr. Rodriguez requested that the Board authorize the conveyance of 1532 W. Loudon Street in 
the 8th Council District to Pablo A. Cortez to be used as a side or rear yard.   The applicant is 
compliant and in good standing with the City of Philadelphia.  The property will be subject to a 30-
year mortgage and permanent use restrictions as a side or rear yard. 
 
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.  There were none. 
 
Chair Wetzel asked if any questions or comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. 
Imredy Saah responded none were received. 
 
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public.  There were none. 
 
Seeing no questions from the Board or the public, Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding this 
disposition.  
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 15 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 10 of 68 
 

Mr. Jeremiah moved to approve the disposition.  Ms. Greenberg seconded the motion. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 
Authorizing Conveyance of 1532 West Loudon Street to Pablo A. Cortez (attached to these 
minutes as Exhibit H). 
 

Item VI 
Public Comment (Old & New Business) 

 
Chair Wetzel asked if there was any Old Business that the Board or public would like to discuss. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Altrena Nixon.  Ms. Nixon wants to purchase the lot next to her property.  
Mr. Rodriguez was familiar with the request, and stated the Land Bank would check on the status and 
follow up with Ms. Nixon. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Winnie Branton.  Ms. Branton urged the Board to return to in-person 
meetings.  Ms. Branton also asked if the public would have the opportunity to comment on the 
committee structures.  Chair Wetzel expects the draft committee charters to be published as part of 
the Board package and the public will have the opportunity to comment on them. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Jihad Ali.  Mr. Ali expressed his concerns about unsolicited development 
proposals and the involvement of minority developers in Turn the Key projects.  Mr. Ali’s full 
comments can be found on pages 77 to 80 of the attached transcript. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Mo Rushdy.  Mr. Rushdy was speaking as President of the BIA, Chair of 
the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, and co-chair of the training committee of the Urban Developer 
Association.  Mr. Rushdy discussed the Land Bank’s enabling legislation and policies, and how 
developers expect to receive approvals if they submit a proposal which fulfills all requirements 
defined in the legislation and policies.  Mr. Rushdy expressed his hope that the Board will look to 
eliminate existing roadblocks as part of the review of its policies and procedures. Mr. Rushdy’s full 
comments can be found on pages 81 to 84 of the attached transcript. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Jesus Rivera.  Mr. Rivera asked about the Civetta sale.  Mr. Rodriguez 
reiterated it was a disposition with a requirement that Civetta construct housing to be sold to income-
certified purchasers through the Turn the Key program.  Mr. Rivera asked about the types of 
applications that Land Bank will review.  Mr. Rodriguez responded with an overview of the existing 
Land Bank disposition programs. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez recognized Jeremy Blatstein.  Mr. Blatstein expressed his desire that the Board not 
disregard the Sunshine Act.  Mr. Blatstein next spoke about the Land Bank Board’s legislated role in 
the disposition process, which is to approve proposed dispositions which meet the criteria legislated 
by City Council, and that he is concerned about Board members inserting their opinions into this 
process.  Mr. Blatstein expressed his support for the Land Bank’s goal of building affordable 
housing, and that he hopes the Board will not hold up a vote for affordable housing development if a 
property is being illegally occupied for another use. 
 
Mr. Beauvais clarified that no one on the Board discussed disregarding the Sunshine Act. 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 16 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 11 of 68 
 

Item VII 
Adjournment 

 
Seeing no further comments from the Board or the public, Chair Wetzel called for a motion to 
adjourn. 
 
Mr. Jeremiah moved to adjourn the meeting, and Mr. Beauvais seconded the motion. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn at 12:07 pm. 
 
NOTE:  Any comments and questions submitted via the Q&A function follow the list of attendees 
attached to these minutes. 
 
 
 

  
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 17 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 12 of 68 
 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar. 
 

User Name 
Jamila Davis 

Altrena Nixon 
Kurt Raymond 

Winnie Branton 
Eugene Tull 

Jacquelyn Sims 
Jihad Ali 

Wadia Gardiner 
MO RUSHDY 

A Weiss 
Russell Hicks 

Logan M 
Julian Rios 

Jeremy Blatstein 
Mike Tomasetti 

Sonya Nickerson 
Jamal Wells 

Raj Patel 
JD Walsh 

Jacqueline Williams 
Antonio Cerqueira 

Anthony Fullard 
Doris Aldridge 

Leah Apgar 
Devon Caudle 
Erika Rosario 

Dimka Braswell 
A B 
J L 

Stephanie Cortez 
Lamar Montgomery 
LaKisha Richardson 

Sophia Scott 
Jennifer Hombach 

Tyler Accooe 
Christopher Edwards 

Malcolm Mapp 
 

Page 1 of 2  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 18 of 192



PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 13 of 68 
 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar.  
 

User Name 
Tymir Oliver 
Jesus Rivera 

Elby Kat 
Juan Erazo 
Ty Harrell 

Tamara Marshall 
Anthony Bright 
Melissa Ramos 
Richard Parrella 
Dee Dee Risher 

M Walker 
Joyce Smith 
Job Itzkowitz 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 19 of 192



 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 14 of 68 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED IN Q&A 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar 
 

# Question Asker Name Answer 

1 

For Angel's chart, does this include all transactions 
from PLB and RDA? If yes, how would I find details 
on  transactions only from the PLB? 
 

Winnie Branton 
 

 
No 
 
 

2 

Turn Key question 
will there be a second phase of the Turn the Key 
Housing program 
 

Joyce Smith 
 

Please clarify what you mean by 
second phase. 
 

3 
Will there be a second Turn Key ? 
 

Joyce Smith 
 

It is the intention of the 
Administration and Council to 
have TTK to continue 
 

4 
What does unsolicited mean? 
 

Jennifer Hombach 
 

Unsolicited means that we did 
not issue a request for proposal. 
They developer did their due 
diligence and submitted a 
qualified application for 
consideration. 
 

5 

Also, as this neighborhood has the worst flooding 
in Philly and many smal creeks have been built 
upon, have all 70 of these parcels been adequately 
surveyed to ensure no severe flood damage is likely 
to occur within the next 10 years? 
 

Jennifer Hombach 
 

That is issue is addressed in the 
entitlement process after 
approval where L&I and the 
Water Dept review the project 
for storm water management. 
 

6 

When you say 250 regarding the sale. is that 
$250,000 or $250? I don't want to assume 
 

Tamara Marshall 
 

 
$250,000  
 

7 

what protections are built in case a developer does 
not finsih a project?  There is a plot of land on 
Hortter street (supposed to have 19 homes) that 
started but never finished. So the community has 
land that was purchased and 3 unfinshed homes. 
 

Tamara Marshall 
 

We include a power of attorney 
in the contract which allows us 
to quiet title and revest the 
property should there be a 
default. 
 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 20 of 192



 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 15 of 68 
 

# Question Asker Name Answer 

8 

I am a neighbor in lower germantown and live 
within blocks of a number of these properties. I 
have one question and one comment. Question: If 
this is the turnkey program, is that program still 
prioritizing city workers over other lower income 
families?    My comment is this: Our neighborhood 
can certainly use affordable housing. The AMI is 
$114,400, which means that families at $91.200 
meet the "low income" criteria. But the average 
family in our neighborhood is at a median income 
of $41K. That is a huge disparity. Can we limit buyer  
 
income to even less--is that possible? So that 
higher income people do not move into the 
neighborhood to get this "affordable housing" from 
the people who live here now and do not have that 
kind of income. 
 

Dee Dee Risher 
 

No - we do not prioritize city 
employees. We consider 
qualified applicants. As for AMI 
the the typical hoembuyer in the 
Turn the Key is 57% AMI average 
salary for the homebuyer is 
$45,000/ year. 
 

9 

I am a neighbor in lower germantown and live 
within blocks of a number of these properties. I 
have one question and one comment. Question: If 
this is the turnkey program, is that program still 
prioritizing city workers over other lower income 
families?    My comment is this: Our neighborhood 
can certainly use affordable housing. The AMI is 
$114,400, which means that families at $91.200 
meet the "low income" criteria. But the average 
family in our neighborhood is at a median income 
of $41K. That is a huge disparity. Can we limit buyer 
income to even less--is that possible? So that 
higher income people do not move into the 
neighborhood to get this "affordable housing" from 
the people who live here now and do not have that 
kind of income. 
 

Dee Dee Risher 
 

No - we do not prioritize city 
employees. We consider 
qualified applicants. As for AMI 
the the typical hoembuyer in the 
Turn the Key is 57% AMI average 
salary for the homebuyer is 
$45,000/ year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 

are these properties only being developed as 
affordable housing (min salary requirment). or can 
anyone purchase the property once built? 
 

Tamara Marshall 
 

The proposal is for affordable 
housing. As for AMI the the 
typical hoembuyer in the Turn 
the Key is 57% AMI average 
salary for the homebuyer is 
$45,000/ year. 
 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 21 of 192



 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 16 of 68 
 

# Question Asker Name Answer 

11 

What concerns or solutions are being proposed to 
address current and future parking issues? 
Presently, there are homeowners who are parking 
their cars partially on sidewalks due to the narrow 
width of streets.  
 
Additionally, if parking is occurring on sidewalks, 
any and all damage to sidewalks, water and gas 
valves, and sewer lines becomes the responsibility 
of the homeowner, not the individual who's parking 
a heavy car/truck on the valve lines. Isn't that 
correct? 
 

Ty  Harrell 
 

If approved, the project would 
be reviewed by L&I, Streets Dept 
and the Water Dept before 
permits would be issued and 
settlement would occur. 
 

12 

Great job Angel! How can communities advocate 
to City Council members and stakeholders to 
allocate more funding the Turn Key program to 
retain Black and Brown developers? 
 

Russell Hicks 
 

You can speak directly to the 
District Council members to 
advocate. 
 

13 

Thank you Angel. Does the Board see these 
comments? And I am sorry--are 100 percent of 
these homes going into the Turnkey program? Are 
you a part of this program? If so, maybe the site 
can be updated which says that city employees are 
preferred. HERE: https://phdcphila.org/residents-
and-landlords/homebuyers-and-renters/turn-the-
key/ 
 

Dee Dee Risher 
 

These comments are included in 
the minutes and made a part of 
thr record. Yes this project is 
100% affordable and eligible for 
Turn the Key. We manage the 
TTK program. We can consider 
clarifying the language. 
H555 

14 

Funding to help retain Black and Brown home 
ownerships and support to subsidize the cost for 
Black and Brown developers? 
 

Russell Hicks 
 

 
 
   Yes 
 

15. 

You must be a first-time buyer – a person who has 
never owned a home or who has not owned a home 
for three years prior to applying to Turn The Key. 
It says: "Preference will be given to income 
qualified municipal employees, and then to other 
income eligible households." 
 

Dee Dee Risher 
 

 
 
 
 
Thank you for bringing that to 
our attention. 
 

16. 

Thank you, Mr. Rodriguez. However, that has not 
dissuaded the current sidewalk parking issues nor 
has it mitigated the multi-thousand dollar cost for 
the homeowner to repair water/gas/sewer lines 
from curbside to the home imparted by the 
Philadelphia City Government. 
 

Ty  Harrell 
 

Understood - please understand 
that parking regulations and 
street/ sidewalk conditions are 
not the purview of the Land 
Bank. If this is approved the 
Streets department and L&I 
would review the feasibility of 
the building permits. 
 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 22 of 192



 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 17 of 68 
 

 
# Question Asker Name Answer 

17. 

is there still a residency requirement.  (can 
someone who lives in a  surrounding county apply) 
 

joyce Smith 
 

There is no residency 
requirement 
 

18. 

i did not get a response to my question, can some 
of these properties that have flood concerns be 
acquired by the federal governement. they have a 
program to acquire and mitigate and preserve in 
perpetuity 
 

a weiss 
 

 
Answered live 

19. 

I have a nonprofit organization which houses 
homeless people and also trains them with life and 
educational skills. How do I find a list of vacant 
schools and buildings to purchase through the 
land banks 
 

Lamar Montgomery  
 

Please send an email explaining 
the type of property you are 
looking for so that we can 
determine whether there is 
anything in our inventory that 
fits the need.  The Land Bank 
has mostly vacant land, but the 
City may own appropriate 
properties. 
 

20. Has there been an effort by the Philadelphia City or 
County government to encourage or assist 
municipal employees to purchase the multitude of 
current vacant (new construction) properties that 
already exist? 
 

Ty  Harrell 
 

 
Answered live 

21. i guess i cannot speak again so i will enter in the 
q&a is there a plan for protection of mature trees 
that they not just be plowed down. then also for 
planting of trees and landscape. and in general 
preservation of green space while adding to it in 
these developments 
 

a weiss 
 

Answered live 

22. will this call be available to re -watch? 
 

JD Walsh 
 

Yes.  You'll be able to see the 
recording in a few days at 
https://phdcphila.org/who-we-
are/Boards/philadelphia-land-
bank-Board/ 
 

23. Are any of the inspectors certified or experienced 
in Philly watershed maintenance or EPA standards 
for developing on "wetlands"? 
 

Dimka  Braswell  
 

Answered live 

24 why are the photos not labeled with addresses.? 
 

a weiss 
 

Answered live 

25. why not hold aside those with flooding issues? 
 

a weiss 
 

Answered live 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 23 of 192



 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 18 of 68 
 

# Question Asker Name Answer 
26. Hi. I also maintain a side yard on mechanic street 

and have tried to apply for side yard and to apply 
for the larger lot to be used as a community 
garden/community gathering space without much 
support in the process. I would like to make known 
that I am interested in pursuing this along with my 
neighbors. 
 

Elby Kat 
 

 

27. If no other property or land isnt taken out, that is 
they wont be another way to acquire them 
 

jesus Rivera 
 

 

28. i had my hand raised for a while. my questions are : 
is 111 and 112 E springer streeet still part of the 
proposal? how is the land bank factoring in the 
need for outdoor space in these neighborhoods 
considering that most homes dont have back 
yards and places for people to connect or children 
to play?  since there arent path for the community 
to legally request use of these land what are our 
resources to get what we truly need for our 
neighorhoods? 
 

Tamara Marshall 
 

 

29. Its my  support for unsolicited proposals that have 
a large degree (and documented) of community 
input and engagement that meets Land Bank 
criteria 
 

joyce Smith 
 

 

30. The water issues/ built over waterways that 
surround 316-334 e mechanic st also impact a 
LOT of parcels that are slated for conveyance 
today — I would state that all 70 parcels are tabled 
until they are considered for their water impacts ! I 
bet many of these parcels also had water damage 
issues in the past as that is rampant in 
germantown! 
 

Jennifer Hombach 
 

 

31. And that the proposals demonstrate a significant 
benefit for the community that the development is 
in 
 

joyce Smith 
 

 

32. How can my nonprofit organization attain housing 
and buildings to aid us in our mission? 
 

Lamar Montgomery  
 

Please send an email outlining 
the purpose for which you are 
seeking land and the location of 
your organization to 
andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov 
 

 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 24 of 192



 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 19 of 68 
 

# Question Asker Name Answer 
33. Also is it possible to give much greater notice to 

the public especially for unsolicited 
developments?? I saw this sign in my yard last 
week - if I was out of town I would have missed it!!! 
 

Jennifer Hombach 
 

 

34. 

Will we be able to ask questions or is the meeting 
over and this portion only relevant to the Land 
Bank Board?  I have questions to ask. 
 

Altrena Nixon 
 

 

35. 

The community need   developers who are willing 
to work with and engage neighborhood residents in 
a substantial way.  Too often developers are single 
vision and dismissive of residents voices and 
concerns.  If developers are going after public land 
they  should demonstrate an earnest effort in their 
engagement.  Transparency and mutual respect is 
an important ingredient in all exchanges.  
Community benefit should weigh significantly in 
this process 
 

joyce Smith 
 

 

   
 

 
 
 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 25 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 20 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 26 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 21 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 27 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 22 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 28 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 23 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 29 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 24 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 30 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 25 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 31 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 26 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 32 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 27 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 33 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 28 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 34 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 29 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 35 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 30 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 36 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 31 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 37 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 32 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 38 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 33 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 39 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 34 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 40 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 35 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 41 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 36 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 42 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 37 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 43 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 38 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 44 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 39 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 45 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 40 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 46 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 41 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 47 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 42 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 48 of 192



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors Draft Meeting Minutes for June 11, 2024 Page 43 of 68 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for July 16, 2024 Page 49 of 192




